1955

# State of Utah v. Fred Tedesco et al : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

### STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action was commenced by the State of Utah to condemn certain property for This Is The Place Monument Park. The direction of the Legislature in this respect was positive and the language of the statute

dealt not only with the end result but also with procedure and is worthy of quotation, as follows:

There is appropriated out of the emergency relief fund to the Engineering Commission the sum of three hundred thousand dollars to pay the amount of the judgment or judgments, costs, appraisal fees and other expenses incident to the condemning and acquisition of the lands referred to in Section 8 hereof. The amount to be expended under this appropriation shall not exceed the amount awarded by the court as judgment or judgments and costs and the expenses in the proceedings to be instituted for the condemning of said lands. It is further expressly provided that in the event the said judgment or judgments, costs and expenses shall exceed the amount of three hundred thousand dollars the State Board of Examiners shall allocate out of the reserve building fund to the Engineering Commission such additional amount as may be necessary to pay said judgment or judgments, costs, appraisal fees and expenses incident thereto. Provided further that any owners of any part or all of the land described in Section 8 hereof, may on or before July 15, 1951 submit in writing an offer to sell said land to the State of Utah to said Engineering Commission, together with warranty deed and Abstract of Title or suitable title insurance to said property. If said offer is approved by said Commission within 20 days after receipt thereof, the same shall be presented to the State Board of Examiners by said Commission for their consideration. If approved by said Board of Examiners, the same shall be purchased by said Engineering Commission and paid for upon approval of title, the same as herein provided, for satisfaction of judgment of condemnation. Otherwise, said deed and abstract shall be returned to

said offeror and the property condemned as herein provided. The Engineering Commission shall not delay the institution and prosecution of said action to condemn on account of the foregoing provision, but shall dismiss said action as against any property purchased by the State pursuant to its provisions. Laws of Utah, 1951, First Special Session, Chapter 13, Section 2.

All of the property within the area has been secured by the State of Utah and payment made therefor except that belonging to the respondents here; but it is notable that the property of these respondents comprises the major portion of the property ordered condemned by the Legislature (Ex. 1).

This condemnation proceeding was commenced in accord with the above statute and summonses were served and the effective date for the determination of damage became July 12, 1951, which date appears often in the record as the date upon which the appraisers estimated the damage suffered by the owners of the property involved.

It should be here noted that this action was tried to a jury in May of 1952 and a judgment rendered in favor of the respondents and that that judgment in the sum of \$495,986.40 has been paid to the respondents (R. 43). An appeal was taken by the Deere estate and resulted in this Court granting a new trial upon the question of damages only. The opinion of this Court is reported as the case of *State v. Peek*, 1 U. 2d 265, 265 P. 2d 630. The present appeal is by the State from a jury verdict and



a judgment thereon in the total additional sum of \$192,821.19 (R. 96-99).

The property of the respondent as shown by Exhibit 1 consists of all of the property within the park area except that portion shown in white on the map, (Exhibit 1) and by the pretrial order of the District Court was divided into eight parcels for convenience in presenting the case to the jury. These eight parcels are marked on Exhibit 1 and are given separate colors. Prior to the trial, counsel for the State of Utah and for the respondents, Deere Estate, agreed as to the values that could be placed on five of these parcels, but, as to Parcels 1, 2 and 3 and the value to be placed on the water distribution system, the appraisers were not in agreement and it was this phase of the case that was submitted to the jury. It might be pointed out here that the statute authorizing and directing this condemnation proceeding in effect permitted settlement of values with the various owners only if the owner agreed with the figures and amounts determined upon by the state appraisers; and it should be here noted that the amount agreed upon as to values for Parcels 4 to 8, both inclusive, were the figures of the state appraisers.

It also appears proper to note that the major difference in values between the parties concerns Parcel 1 and the water distribution system and that, as to Parcel 1, the difference lies in the approach made by the appraisers to this problem of value. This difference in approach is particularly apparent in the testimony of

the respondent's witness, Ralph Wright, commencing on page 191 of the record in this case and continuing through page 204 of the record. This difference is again reflected in the testimony of H. Mervin Wallace, a witness for respondent, from page 261 through page 267 of the record, and again in the testimony of respondent's witness, Joseph Benedict, at pages 296 through 299 of the record.

Again, with respect to Parcel 1, the three appraisers for the Deere Estate all arrived at a figure of value slightly in excess of \$300,000.00; the witnesses for the State of Utah values this same property at three different amounts, namely \$163,250.00, \$148,883.00, and \$169,000.00. The record is clear that the approach used by the two sets of appraisers was entirely different and this approach caused this disparity in the amounts. The appraisers for the respondent took each lot within this area as a separate parcel of land, valued it as such on the basis of a retail sale to the ultimate home builder and gave no allowance or consideration to any of the costs involved, to the time element or to the profit for the risk to the owner buyer. The appraisers for the State considered these items and based their appraisal upon the market value of the entire tract as one parcel in accordance with the pretrial order of the District Court.

The witness, Edward M. Ashton, testifying for the State, said:

“Ordinarily, the profits on a real estate subdivision is the last end of it. Many of them are

extended over many years, and I would say, as a rule of practice, the last twenty-five percent of the lots is that portion of the deal that is the profit." (R. 420).

This evidence is not contradicted and is again emphasized by the testimony of each of the appraisers to the effect that the subdivision business is one full of risks that the owner must take.

The jury in this case returned a verdict of \$82,927.00 for the water works and water rights owned by the respondents in connection with the Oakhills development (R. 93). The evidence as to water and its value was confined to the testimony of the witness, C. J. Ullrich, and the witness, Dean F. Brayton. The witness, Ullrich, testified as to the value of the water right itself and placed a value of \$16,500.00 on it (R. 312). The State does not contend that this was improper and we recognize that the appellants are entitled to recover for this water right reduced by the amount sold to Wheelwright as testified to by Mr. Brayton (R. 320). This places a net value of \$11,290.00 on the water right.

However, the witness, Ullrich, placed a value of \$57,200 on the water works (R. 313) and \$19,700.00 on the distribution system (R. 314). There was no evidence as to how this water works and water system could be otherwise used except as given by the witness, Ullrich (R. 311), where he stated that the water collection and transmission system had no use at the time of the condemnation except to serve the area condemned but that it could be adapted to other uses. The evidence as to

this adaptation and the cost thereof was entirely lacking, yet the evidence of value was placed before the jury over the objection of the State.

And, in addition, Mr. Brayton, over the objection of the State, was permitted to testify as to the cost of the water distribution system (R. 317-321), and Exhibit 39 was introduced, over the State's objection, showing these detailed costs, which included an item of ten percent increase in cost which admittedly was never paid or incurred by the respondents (R. 328-330).

The respondent's appraisers each testified that their valuation of the lots within Parcel 1 were based upon the utilities present or absent and each specifically stated that the presence of the water distribution system was reflected in their figures and its absence would have resulted in a lowering of their figures (R. 231, R. 261, and R. 296). Based upon this, the State moved to strike all of the evidence as to this water distribution and transmission system and this motion was denied (R. 332).

We have endeavored in this statement of facts to cover the general picture and we have purposely omitted any reference to the instructions given or the failure to give certain instructions as it is necessary to fully discuss them in the argument following. We have in a few other instances omitted in this statement of facts matters that might properly be there but they again appear necessary to fully state in the argument. This brief is rather long and it is our desire to avoid repetition where it is possible to do so.

## STATEMENT OF POINTS

### POINT I.

THAT THE TRIAL COURT IMPROPERLY HELD AND INSTRUCTED THE JURY THAT THE RESPONDENTS WERE ENTITLED TO RECOVER DAMAGES UPON SIXTY-TWO SEPARATE LOTS WITHIN PARCEL 1, EACH TO BE SEPARATELY VALUED AND THEN TOTALLED FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSESSING DAMAGE AS TO PARCEL 1; AND ERROR IS PREDICATED UPON EACH OF THE FOLLOWING SPECIFIC POINTS IN THIS CONNECTION:

(A) THAT THIS ACTION OF THE TRIAL COURT WAS IN DIRECT CONTRADICTION TO THE PRETRIAL ORDER OF THE COURT.

(B) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTION NO. 9 AND INSTRUCTED THE JURY IN EFFECT THAT THEY WERE TO DISREGARD THE EVIDENCE OF PLAINTIFF'S WITNESSES, AND ALSO THAT SAID INSTRUCTION PERMITS THE JURY TO ASSESS AS A PART OF VALUE FUTURE PROFITS NOT YET EARNED AND HIGHLY SPECULATIVE.

(C) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTIONS NOS. 12 AND 13; THAT SAID INSTRUCTIONS IN EFFECT PERMITTED THE JURY TO ASSESS AS VALUE THE RETAIL PRICE OF THE INDIVIDUAL LOTS IN PARCEL 1.

(D) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTION NO. 17 IN THAT AGAIN THE PURPORT OF SAID INSTRUCTION GIVES TO THE DEFENDANTS A FUTURE PROFIT

HIGHLY SPECULATIVE AND NOT YET EARNED; AND THE EFFECT OF SAID INSTRUCTION IS TO UNDERWRITE AN UNEARNED PROFIT FOR THE DEFENDANTS.

(E) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY REFUSED TO GIVE PLAINTIFF'S REQUESTED INSTRUCTIONS NOS. 10, 11 AND 12; THAT SAID INSTRUCTIONS CORRECTLY STATE THE LAW APPLICABLE TO CONDEMNATION AND FAILURE TO GIVE SAID INSTRUCTIONS PERMITTED THE JURY TO ASSESS DAMAGES ON THE BASIS OF 60 ODD INDIVIDUAL PARCELS IN PARCEL 1 RATHER THAN ONE PARCEL.

(F) THAT THE TRIAL COURT IMPROPERLY DENIED THE MOTION OF APPELLANT TO STRIKE THE TESTIMONY OF THE WITNESSES, RALPH WRIGHT, D. MERVIN WALLACE AND JOSEPH BENEDICT, AS TO VALUATION OF PARCEL 1.

(G) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTION NO. 10 AS SAID INSTRUCTION DOES NOT CORRECTLY DEFINE A WILLING SELLER.

(H) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY REFUSED TO GIVE PLAINTIFF'S REQUESTED INSTRUCTION NO. 5 AND THAT SAID INSTRUCTION CORRECTLY STATES THE LAW AS IT CONCERNS A WILLING SELLER.

## POINT II.

THAT THE TRIAL COURT IMPROPERLY PERMITTED THE JURY TO CONSIDER AND TO ASSESS DAMAGES TO THE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IN THE FOLLOWING PARTICULARS:

(A) THE COURT IMPROPERLY PERMITTED THE WITNESS, ULLRICH, TO TESTIFY AS TO VALUES OF THE WATER DISTRIBUTION AND TRANSMISSION SYSTEM.

(B) THE COURT IMPROPERLY RECEIVED EXHIBIT 39D PERTAINING TO VALUES OF THE WATER DISTRIBUTION AND TRANSMISSION SYSTEM.

(C) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY DENIED THE PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO STRIKE THE EVIDENCE OF THE WITNESSES, BRAYTON AND ULLRICH AS TO VALUES OF THE WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AND TRANSMISSION SYSTEM.

(D) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY REFUSED TO GIVE PLAINTIFF'S REQUESTED INSTRUCTION NO. 19.

(E) THAT THE TRIAL COURT IMPROPERLY PERMITTED THE WITNESS BRAYTON TO TESTIFY AS TO VALUES AS HE WAS NEITHER AN EXPERT NOR AN OWNER.

### POINT III.

THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY LIMITED THE PLAINTIFF AS TO THE EVIDENCE PROFFERED BY AND PROPOSED TO BE GIVEN BY THE WITNESSES, SOLOMON AND ASHTON.

### POINT IV.

THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTION NO. 15 AND PERMITTED THE JURY TO ASSESS AS VALUE THE STREETS WITHIN THE PROPERTY; THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY REFUSED TO GIVE PLAINTIFF'S RE-

QUESTED INSTRUCTIONS NOS. 14 AND 15 AS TO OWNERSHIP OF PLATTED STREETS.

POINT V.

THAT THE COURT GAVE NO INSTRUCTION AS TO BURDEN OF PROOF AND IMPROPERLY REFUSED TO GIVE PLAINTIFF'S REQUESTED INSTRUCTION NO. 2 DEALING THEREWITH.

POINT VI.

THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY ASSESSED INTEREST AGAINST THE PLAINTIFF IN COMPUTING THE AMOUNT OF THE JUDGMENT ENTERED ON THE VERDICT ON NOVEMBER 5, 1954.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THAT THE TRIAL COURT IMPROPERLY HELD AND INSTRUCTED THE JURY THAT THE RESPONDENTS WERE ENTITLED TO RECOVER DAMAGES UPON SIXTY-TWO SEPARATE LOTS WITHIN PARCEL 1, EACH TO BE SEPARATELY VALUED AND THEN TOTALLED FOR THE PURPOSE OF ASSESSING DAMAGE AS TO PARCEL 1; AND ERROR IS PREDICATED UPON EACH OF THE FOLLOWING SPECIFIC POINTS IN THIS CONNECTION:

- (A) THAT THIS ACTION OF THE TRIAL COURT WAS IN DIRECT CONTRADICTION TO THE PRETRIAL ORDER OF THE COURT.
- (B) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTION NO. 9 AND INSTRUCTED THE JURY IN EFFECT THAT THEY WERE TO



DISREGARD THE EVIDENCE OF PLAINTIFF'S WITNESSES, AND ALSO THAT SAID INSTRUCTION PERMITS THE JURY TO ASSESS AS A PART OF VALUE FUTURE PROFITS NOT YET EARNED AND HIGHLY SPECULATIVE.

(C) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTIONS NOS. 12 AND 13; THAT SAID INSTRUCTIONS IN EFFECT PERMITTED THE JURY TO ASSESS AS VALUE THE RETAIL PRICE OF THE INDIVIDUAL LOTS IN PARCEL 1.

(D) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTION NO. 17 IN THAT AGAIN THE PURPORT OF SAID INSTRUCTION GIVES TO THE DEFENDANTS A FUTURE PROFIT HIGHLY SPECULATIVE AND NOT YET EARNED; AND THE EFFECT OF SAID INSTRUCTION IS TO UNDERWRITE AN UNEARNED PROFIT FOR THE DEFENDANTS.

(E) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY REFUSED TO GIVE PLAINTIFF'S REQUESTED INSTRUCTIONS NOS. 10, 11 AND 12; THAT SAID INSTRUCTIONS CORRECTLY STATE THE LAW APPLICABLE TO CONDEMNATION AND FAILURE TO GIVE SAID INSTRUCTIONS PERMITTED THE JURY TO ASSESS DAMAGES ON THE BASIS OF 60 ODD INDIVIDUAL PARCELS IN PARCEL 1 RATHER THAN ONE PARCEL.

(F) THAT THE TRIAL COURT IMPROPERLY DENIED THE MOTION OF APPELLANT TO STRIKE THE TESTIMONY OF THE WITNESSES, RALPH WRIGHT, D. MERVIN WALLACE AND JOSEPH BENEDICT, AS TO VALUATION OF PARCEL 1.

(G) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY GAVE INSTRUCTION NO. 10 AS SAID INSTRUCTION DOES NOT CORRECTLY DEFINE A WILLING SELLER.

(H) THAT THE COURT IMPROPERLY REFUSED TO GIVE PLAINTIFF'S REQUESTED INSTRUCTION NO. 5 AND THAT SAID INSTRUCTION CORRECTLY STATES THE LAW AS IT CONCERNS A WILLING SELLER.

We have set forth in the statement of points under Point I eight subparagraphs each dealing with a specific issue before the trial court wherein we maintain that error was committed. However, the applicable law would indicate that all eight should be combined for the purpose of argument. The specific issue can be rather briefly stated in two parts: First, is the respondent entitled to a valuation of its property based upon a mere mathematical total of the appraised retail value of each of sixty-two separate building lots, or must the appraisal be made upon the whole parcel of land as one tract for sale on the open market; and, second, as a corollary to the first question, does the respondent here meet the definition of a willing seller when it insists that the value must be based upon the individual building lot for sale to the ultimate consumer, the home owner.

It should be here pointed out that upon the first trial of this case, the entire property of the respondent was divided into only two parcels. Parcel 1 consisted of approximately the same property as Parcel 1 in this case; and Parcel 2 in the first trial comprised the remainder of the entire tract (Exhibit 1). The Deere

Estate, appellant in the first appeal, argued the propriety of this division, and this Court, in the case of *State v. Peek*, supra, said, at page 638 of the Pacific Reporter:

“The court did not err in dividing this property into only two parcels instead of six requested by appellants. Parcel I as the property was divided by the court was the same as appellants’ requested Parcel I, and the court divided the rest of appellant’s lands which were taken into Parcel II. Appellants argue that where land is platted into residential lots each lot constitutes as a matter of law a separate parcel, but they are not in a position to urge this here because they have requested no such division. Parcel I, which is the same as their proposed Parcel I, contains all of the platted residential lots. All of those lots were platted and were being used as a unit in a project to divide and sell such lots as residential property and the court was therefore justified in making the division as it did.”

The pretrial order in the present case, among other things, made the following statement:

“... 4. The primary question for determination is: What was the fair market value on the 12th day of July, 1951, of the tract of land belonging to the Deere Estate and taken by the State of Utah in this proceeding.

“5. Incident thereto, for the purposes of trial, and orderly and systematic procedure, in presenting evidence of value and avoiding confusion in the considerations and deliberation of the jury, is the question of classifying or dividing the lands in sections or parcels similar in conditions, pos-

sible uses, value standards, etc., at the time of the taking, to-wit: July 12, 1951.”

The order then describes 8 parcels and makes reference to Exhibit 25 of the previous trial. Exhibit 1 of the present trial was agreed to by the parties and each of the 8 tracts described in this pretrial order was given a special coloring on Exhibit 1.

We did not take issue with this pretrial order as the division into 8 parcels for the purpose of presenting the evidence seemed proper and within the trial court's discretion; but we urge upon this Court that the dividing of Parcel 1 into sixty-two separate building lots for purpose of valuation and instructing the jury that they should so consider them, was a direct contradiction of the pretrial order and is contrary to the law applicable to condemnation cases. At all phases of this proceeding, counsel for the State strenuously objected to this method of valuation.

Appellant objected to the giving of Instruction No. 9 (R. 517). By that instruction the trial Court told the jury that they should disregard all of the evidence proffered by the State's appraisers and that they should consider each of the sixty-two lots as a single parcel (R. 79). Appellant objected to the giving of Instructions Nos. 12 and 13 (R. 517). Again, those instructions in effect informed the jury that they could and should value each lot in Parcel 1 individually based upon the testimony of the appraisers for respondents and that their verdict should be a mathematical total of all of the sixty-

two lots in Parcel 1. We objected to the giving of Instruction No. 17 (R. 517), and again by this instruction the Court informed the jury that “you *are not* to take into consideration any speculative increase or decrease in values that may occur or have occurred in the future; nor any consideration of future tax or sale commission that might be paid for future sales, . . . nor possible future expenses that defendants be saved by selling now; nor any interest the defendants might be saved or be entitled to receive . . .” (R. 88).

The appellant requested certain instructions and those particularly pertinent here are those designated as Plaintiff’s Requested Instructions Nos. 10, 11, and 12. (R. 65, 66 and 67). The trial court has noted on each of these instructions that they were given in substance or were covered in other instructions. We most strenuously urge that they were not so covered, but on the contrary the language of the instructions given and referred to above were directly opposed to those instructions requested; and we objected to the court’s refusal to give these requested instructions (R. 518).

Specifically, in our Requested Instruction No. 10 the value of each of the Parcels involved was “to be measured by the fair market value of such parcel as an entirety as of July 12, 1951 . . .” Our Requested Instruction No. 11 reads as follows:

“You are not to consider what the land was worth to the defendants for speculation, or for merely possible uses, nor what they claim it was worth

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