1955

# State of Utah et al v. Burton F. Peek and Charles D. Wiman : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

Appellant cites no cases which hold that evidence of the retail value of lots in a completed subdivision is not proper. As has been repeatedly stated, Parcel 1, with the exception of section or tract 1-C, was fully subdivided into residential lots, fully improved, and held and ready for immediate sale to the public. The Deere Estate had been developing this area for a period of many, many years as a residential subdivision. The long-range planning, engineering, and development had been substantially completed prior the time of condemnation. An extensive water system had been developed and installed. Power, telephone and gas lines had been laid underground, a selling program had been adopted. The lots were fully divided. The roads were completed with the exception of a final hot plant mix which winter weather had delayed. Mr. Solomon on cross examination (R. 480) admitted that every lot in the subdivision was available for immediate sale as residential lots on July 12, 1951. The only other work which in his opinion was necessary was the marking of the lot corners with stakes. However, he admitted that some of the lots had already been sold without such marking. (R. 494) No conflict existed as to these physical facts.

Under these circumstances, respondents submit that it was entirely proper for the court to admit opinion evidence as to the retail value of each lot in Parcel 1. Such values were taken into consideration by all of the experts in arriving at their opinions as to the fair market value of the whole parcel, and no objection was made by the State when such evidence was offered.

Three cases, as follows, each cited and quoted from by appellant, alone completely justify the action of the court in refusing to strike the expert testimony so admitted:

(1) The California case of *Redwood City Elementary School District v. Gregoire*, 276 P. 2d 78, cited by appellant on page 38 of its brief, most definitely justifies the consideration of the lot values in Parcel 1 by the jury. That case is particularly strong for respondents' position. There the property consisted of 12.23 acres of land containing acacia and eucalyptus trees, a six-bedroom home, a barbecue with kitchen and dance hall, workmen's quarters, garage, hay barn, chicken coops, sheep barns and acreage of farm land devoted to raising flowers. However, the expert appraisers all agreed that the highest and best use of the property would be for subdivision purposes, and that it could be divided into 60 separate lots. As noted, no subdivision had as then been initiated. Quoting from appellant's brief, page 38:

"The two appraisers for the school district gave figures of \$78,750.00 and \$78,400.00, while the two appraisers for the owner gave \$153,000.00 and \$146,750.00; *and this last figure was demonstrated as a mathematical total of the value of each of the sixty lots.* A jury returned a verdict of \$83,500.00 and the owner appealed. *The appellate court affirmed hold (holding?) that it was proper to submit both sets of values to the jury \*\*\*.*" (Italics ours.)

The property in this Gregoire case was not subdivided. It was raw acreage. *Yet, the experts were permitted to justify their opinions as to fair market value by showing the mathematical computations of the sums of the retail sale price of each lot.* Lots in this case were conjectural only. None existed in fact. Not only would extensive development be necessary to make the lots ready for sale, but the existing buildings would have to be razed.

(2) *State v. Deal*, 233 P. 2d 242, cited by appellant at page 35 of its brief, though also dealing with raw acreage, is cited by respondents for dictum justifying the consideration by the jury in this case of the value of actual individual lots in Parcel 1. There the property was hilly ocean-side property. It was completely unimproved. No subdivision had been made. The land was raw acreage. Since the land was completely unimproved, the court stated:

“probable value of lots that do not exist is too speculative.”

However, the court added by way of dictum that:

*“Evidence which is speculative in one situation may not be so in others.* Thus, in *County of Blue Earth v. St. Paul & Sioux City R. Co.*, 28 Minn. 503, 11 N. W. 73, the court, per Mitchell, J., held it proper for witnesses on value to adopt as a basis for their calculations the process of dividing the land into lots for residential purposes and

then calculating the market value of the property by lots. But the land in that case was city property, in fact the court house square, *while here we are dealing with a wild land on the Ocean Coast.*'' (Italics ours.)

It is interesting to note that in the Minnesota case where evidence *was* allowed (involving the court house square) no subdivision had been attempted and razing would also be necessary.

(3) *Catlin v. Northern Coal and Iron Co.*, 225 Pa. 262, 74 Atl. 56, cited by appellant's brief, page 24, in support of its contention that it was reversible error to deny its motion to strike the testimony of respondent's experts, is also cited by respondents for the opposite proposition. There, a tract had been marked out on the ground into lots and streets. No improvements had been made. The owner advertised them for sale, but no sale was consummated because his offer was \$500 per lot above the highest bid. A large number of witnesses testified as to the value of the property if sold as individual building lots. Appellant contended that it was reversible error for the trial court to refuse to strike such evidence. This issue was not reached on its merits because appellant's objections were not properly presented. However, the trial court also refused to instruct the jury to disregard such evidence as speculative and remote, but charged that such would be the case only if the estimates of lot value were based upon *future* sales. This instruc-

tion allowed the jury to consider testimony as to market value of the lots *at the time of condemnation*. The court held that the charge was proper. In justifying its decision, the court distinguished the case from one where unimproved raw acreage was concerned as follows, to wit:

What was said in these cases, if not considered in connection with their facts, might appear to give support to the view now earnestly pressed upon us. These cases, however, must be read and understood in view of the situation at the time of the entry. The entry in these cases was made on farm land in rural districts, *and they were not immediately available for sale as building lots*. The effort was made to add a fictitious value to the lands entered upon by undertaking to show that they could be divided into lots, and might be sold for building purposes. It was apparent, however, that *this was all speculative, and had no real basis in fact*. The lands appropriated were farm lands, and in determining their value it was necessary to limit the inquiry to those intrinsic elements of value existing at the time of the appropriation. In the case last cited a witness was asked on preliminary cross-examination if his estimate was based upon what it would bring if it had been laid out in building lots, and all the lots had been sold at what he considered them worth, to which an affirmative answer was given. This court held that the method of estimating market value indicated by the answer of the witness was improper. *This case is clearly right on the facts. The tract of land had not been laid out in lots. It was farm land. There was no immediate pros-*

*pect of its being available for sale as building lots, and hence such a method of estimating value would be purely speculative. (Italics ours.)*

It is interesting to note that practically all of the authorities cited by the appellant refer specifically to *unimproved land where no subdivision has commenced*. Each of them is therefore necessarily distinguished from the case at bar by the reasoning of Judge Elkin in *Catlin v. Northern Coal & Iron Co.*, *supra*, cited by appellant. The following cited by appellant fall into this category:

4 Nichols on Eminent Domain, p. 107 (Page 22).

18 Am. Jur. on Eminent Domain, Sec. 244, at p. 881 (page 23).

United States v. 3,544 Acres of Land, 147 F. 2d 596, (Pages 25-26).

City of Los Angeles v. Hughes, 262 Pac. 737, (page 32).

Redwood City Elementary School Dist. v. Gregoire, 276 P. 2d 78, (page 38).

City of Napa v. Navoni, 132 P. 2d 566, (page 34).

Thornton v. Birmingham, 250 Ala. 651, 35 So. 2d 545, (page 34).

It is further submitted that no other authority cited by appellant supports its contention that it was error to deny appellant's motion to strike the testimony of Wright, Wallace and Benedict as to the fair market value.

Finally, it should be made clear to this court that the experts' appraisals were not just made by simply adding up the totals of the possible values of sixty-two lots and Tract 1-C, using this mathematical result as the fair market value of Parcel 1. The opinions expressed were in each case judgment figures *for the entire parcel*. In arriving at such opinions, each expert had of course taken into consideration a vast store of pertinent information reflecting or having an effect on values. This included, as expressly authorized by this court's opinion in *State v. Peek*, *supra*, lot values of the twenty-two comparable lots in this very area which had been sold on the open market shortly before the Legislature authorized this condemnation.

For example, as to the witness Ralph B. Wright: (R. 229-230)

“Q. Now, as I understand it, your assessment or appraisal of fair market value of the entire parcel is not the mathematical total of your individual appraisals of all of the various parts, as I understand it?

A. Yes sir, that's correct.

Q. That is, it isn't the total, or it is the total?

A. Well, let me be specific. The total for all the figures—that is, for the three elements of Parcel 1—is \$314,250.00.

Q. That is the mathematical total?

A. That is the mathematical total of all the lots, plus the \$14,000.00 which I ascribed to the area 1-C down in the corner. I rounded that off at \$310,000.00

Q. And, in doing that, you also took into consideration the various other methods which appraisers have available to them as tools?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And the figure of \$310,000.00 for the entire period is your judgment figure based upon your experience?

A. That's correct."

The trial court properly denied plaintiff's Motion to Strike.



### Point 3.

The court committed no error in admitting evidence, refusing to strike evidence, or in instructing the jury concerning the valuation of the water system.

a. Appellant does not challenge Mr. Ullrich's qualifications as an expert, nor does it contradict his testimony. Its major contention with respect to the valuation of the water system is that "the evidence clearly shows that its value is included within the values placed by the appraisers upon the land itself and *that to permit the jury to place a separate value upon it requires the State of Utah to pay for it twice.* (p. 41) (Italics ours.) In support of this contention appellant states "we feel compelled" to quote cross-examination; whereupon a portion of the record is quoted at page 41 and 42 of the brief.

Had appellant's feelings of compulsion caused it to continue to quote the record from page 231, it would have become abundantly clear that Mr. Wright did *not* include the value of the water system in his valuation of the land. The court's attention is invited to the record, page 231, where appellant's quotation stops:

BY MR. BEHLE:

Q. Well, on this point now, of course, you took into your values the fact that water was ready and available, did you not?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And, if there hadn't been water, the values would have been lower just as they are lower because there is no sewer, is that correct?

A. Yes sir.

Q. But, as to the value of the water system that made that water available, were those independent values or are those reflected in the lot values?

A. Well, the value of the water system itself is another matter. The presence of the water system in the streets is reflected in my values for the lots, but that does not imply that the owner of the land owns the pipe or the water system itself.

Q. In other words, the lot values with water would have been the same whether water came from Salt Lake City, Salt Lake County, the Deere Estate, or apart from the ownership of the source?

A. Yes sir, that's correct.

Q. And did you, or did you not, include in your figures the value of the water system itself?

A. No, I did not.

As is admitted by appellant on page 42 of its brief, witnesses Wallace and Benedict made similar statements. (e. g. R. 261)

In appraising this land, the experts considered all the favorable factors operating which would give the land desirability as residential property. The availability of such facilities as power, gas, telephone, and water lines, roads, curbs, gutters, etc. naturally incidentally increased the market value of the property. If there had been no water available on the property, the value would of course have been less. If the telephone lines were not installed, that also would be reflected in a decreased valuation of the land in question. However, that incidental effect upon the fair market value has no relation to the actual value of the facility itself.

The near proximity of the Indian Hills and Monument Park residential subdivisions also increased the value of the land in question. Could appellant be heard to argue that since presence of the Indian Hills subdivision was reflected in the fair market value of the Deere Estate, that the owners of Indian Hills need not be

compensated should it be condemned? It could not. It is submitted that appellant's contention with respect to this extensive water system is equally ridiculous.

The Deere Estate developed and owned a complex water collection, storage, transmission and distribution system which took a great deal of time and money to develop. (R. 115, 197) This property was seized by the State of Utah in this condemnation proceeding. Yet, appellant contends that the Estate should not be compensated for this valuable property beyond the incidental increased value which its presence contributed to the property which it served.

Note that on page 45 of its brief, appellant contends the system had no market value except with the property condemned. There is no evidence in the record to support such a contention. Mr. Ullrich testified without contradiction on cross examination as follows: (R. 324-5)

Q. Mr. Ullrich, on what other areas in this vicinity could this water be beneficially used?

A. The water in question could be used to supply domestic and culinary water to homes in Emigration Canyon over a distance extending from the mouth of the canyon to two miles up said canyon. Said water could also be used as a culinary and domestic supply to any building sub-division developed in the foothill area immediately south of

Emigration Canyon and above the area now served by Salt Lake City municipal water system. Similarly, said water could be used on any building subdivision in the foothills north of the present State Park area. Said water could also be used as an auxiliary supply to Fort Douglas.

This identical question was decided by this court in *State v. Peek*, 1 U. 2d 263, 265 P. 2d 630. In commenting upon the refusal of the trial court to admit opinion evidence as to the value of the water system (the very same evidence that appellant now claims should not have been admitted in the second trial) this court said in part:

The court also erred in excluding appellant's opinion evidence on the value of their waterworks system. Appellant's witness showed himself qualified to give an expert opinion on that question. He also testified that this system was capable of being used in connection with property outside of appellant's lands. \* \* \* It undoubtedly would have aided the jury in determining the true value of appellant's property had all of these details been shown to them, for certainly they could more accurately assess the valuation of this property if they had before them the value which the experts placed on this system in arriving at their over-all value of the property, and could test such valuation by comparison with the opinion of an expert on the value of that kind of property. The value of such a utility is especially one which calls for expert opinion because such property is not bought and sold every day on the open market, so expert opinion thereon is almost mandatory.

Appellant does not contend nor does the record show that the testimony of the expert in the second trial is different in any way from that proffered at the first. It simply contends that the court "improperly permitted the witness, Ullrich, to testify as to values of the water distribution and transmission system." A complete answer is that the decision of this court stating that the value of the waterworks system *was* competent evidence is the law of the case. The evidence was properly admitted.

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